English



DH4L – UHF Low Digital Fiber DAS User & Installation Manual



Document History

Description	Revision	Date Issued
Original version	1.0	July 3 rd , 2014
General Review	2.0	March 2 nd , 2016

About this manual

This manual describes installation, commissioning, operation and maintenance of the **Fiplex UHF Low Digital Fiber DAS**, and *Fiplex Control Software (FCS)*. The hardware included in this manual corresponds to the **Digital Master Unit DH4L00-M** (DM), and **Digital Remote Unit DH4L37-R** (DR).

The first part of the manual describes the Digital Fiber DAS hardware and the second part describes the software.

Hardware and software mentioned in this manual are subjected to continuous development and improvement. Consequently, there may be minor discrepancies between the information in the manual and the performance and design of the hardware and software. Specifications, dimensions and other statements mentioned in this manual are subject to change without notice.

This manual or parts of it may not be reproduced without the written permission of Fiplex Communications Inc. Infringements will be prosecuted. All rights reserved. Copyright © Fiplex Communications Inc, Miami, 2016.

Contents

Part 1 HARDWARE	. ¡Error! Marcador no definido.
1. Safety	
2. Product Description	4
2.1 Digital Master Unit Ports	5
2.2 Digital Remote Unit Ports	
2.3 Connection Diagram	7
2.4 FO Connection	
2.4.1 FO Connection in Master Unit	
2.4.2 FO Connection in Remote Unit	9
2.5 Interface with signal source	10
3 Installation	
Mounting	
Opening and Closing the Cabinet	
Nema4X considerations	
4 Commissioning	
4.1 Connection step by step	
4.2 Starting Operation	
4.3 Status Indicators	27
4.4 Laboratory Measurements	
Part 2 SOFTWARE	
5 Introduction	
6 USB Software	
6.1 Software description (Digital Master)	
6.2 RF parameters description (Digital Master)	
6.3 Software description (Remote Unit)	
7 Local Software. Installation and troubleshooting	
7.1 Installation	

Abbreviations

Automatic Gain Control
Advanced Mobile Phone Service
Absolute Radio Frequency Channel Number
Broadcast Control Channel (GSM broadcast channel time slot)
Base Station, BS antenna = towards the base station
Code Division Multiple Access
Direct Current
Digital Communication System (same as PCN)
Downlink signal direction (from base station via repeater to mobile station)
Duplex filter
Electrical Erasable Programmable Read Only Memory
Extended Global System for Mobile communication
Extended Total Access Communication System
European Telecommunications Standard Institute
Fiplex Control Software
Global System for Mobile communication
Hardware
Light Emitting Diode
Low Noise Amplifier, uplink and downlink
Mobile Station, MS antenna = towards the mobile station
Operation and Maintenance System
Overload
Power Amplifier
Personal Communication Network (same as DCS)
Personal Communication System
Power Supply
Radio Frequency
Received Signal Strength Indication
Software
Time Division Multiple Access
Uplink signal direction (from mobile station via repeater to base station)
Waste of Electric and Electronic Equipment

Part 1 HARDWARE

1. Safety

Dangerous Voltage Warning

Any personnel involved in installation, operation or service of Fiplex Digital Fiber DAS **must** understand and obey the following:



The power supply unit in Digital Fiber DAS supplied from the mains contains dangerous voltage level, which can cause electric shock. Switch the mains off prior to any work in such a Digital Fiber DAS. Any local regulations are to be followed when servicing Digital Fiber DAS. Authorized service personnel only are allowed to service Digital Fiber DAS while the main is switched on.

Any Digital Fiber DAS, including this Digital Fiber DAS, will generate radio signals and thereby give rise to electromagnetic fields that may be hazardous to the health of any person who is extensively exposed to the signals at the immediate proximity of the Digital Fiber DAS and the Digital Fiber DAS antennas.

Radiation Hazard Warning

R&TTE Compliance Statement

This equipment complies with the appropriate essential requirements of Article 3 of the R&TTE Directive 1999/5/EC.



Station Ground

BTS chassis, Digital Fiber DAS, feeders, donor antenna, service antenna/s and auxiliary equipment (splitters, tabs, .etc) are required to be bonded to protective grounding using the bonding stud or screw provided with each unit.



Electrostatic Discharge

Static electricity means no risk of personal injury but it can severely damage essential parts of the Digital Fiber DAS, if not handled carefully.

Parts on the printed circuit boards as well as other parts in the Digital Fiber DAS are sensitive to electrostatic discharge.

Never touch printed circuit boards or uninsulated conductor surfaces unless absolutely necessary. If you must handle printed circuit boards or uninsulated conductor surfaces, use ESD protective equipment, or first touch the Digital Fiber DAS chassis with your hand and then do not move your feet on the floor. Never let your clothes touch printed circuit boards or uninsulated conductor surfaces.



Disposal of Electric and Electronic Waste

Pursuant to the WEEE EU Directive electronic and electrical waste must not be disposed of with unsorted waste. Please contact your local recycling authority for disposal of this product.

FCC Compliance

This is a Class B signal booster

WARNING: This is a 90.219 Class B device. This is **NOT** a **CONSUMER** device. It is designed for installation by **FCC LICENSEES** and **QUALIFIED INSTALLERS**. You **MUST** have an **FCC LICENSE** or express consent of an FCC Licensee to operate this device. You **MUST** register Class B signal boosters (as defined in 47 CFR 90.219) online at www.fcc.gov/signal-boosters/registration. Unauthorized use may result in significant forfeiture penalties, including penalties in excess of \$100,000 for each continuing violation. The installation procedure must result in the signal booster complying with FCC requirements 90.219(d). In order to meet FCC requirements 90.219(d), it may be necessary for the installer to reduce the UL and/or DL output power for certain installations.



ATTENTION: This device complies with Part 15 of the FCC rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) this device may not cause harmful interference and (2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.



ATTENTION: FCC regulation mandate that the ERP of type B signal boosters should not exceed 5W. This Digital Fiber DAS has a maximum DL composite output power of 5W (+37dBm) and UL composite output power of +24dBm, therefore the gain of the DL antenna should be of 0dBi or less and maintain a minimum separation of 55 cm from all persons, and the gain of the UL antenna should be 13dBi or less and maintain

a minimum separation of 55 cm from all persons.

IC Compliance

As per RSS 131 Issue 2:

- Nominal passband gain: 80dB max
- Nominal bandwidth: 90 kHz maximum for Canada market
- Rated mean output power: +37dBm maximum in DL and +24dBm maximum in UL
- Input and Output impedances: 50 ohms

The Manufacturer's rated output power of this equipment is for single carrier operation. For situations when multiple carrier signals are present, the rating would have to be reduced by 3.5 dB, especially where the output signal is re-radiated and can cause interference to adjacent band users. This power reduction is to be by means of input power or gain reduction and not by an attenuator at the output of the device.

RF Exposure Statement for ISED: "This device complies with Health Canada's Safety Code. The installer of this device should ensure that RF radiation is not emitted in excess of the Health Canada's requirement. Information can be obtained at <u>http://www.hc-sc.gc.ca/ewh-semt/pubs/radiation/radio_guide-lignes_direct/index-eng.php</u>"

The antenna/s used for this transmitter must be installed to provide a separation of at least 55 cm in DL and 55 cm in UL from all persons and must not be collocated or operating in conjunction with any other antenna or transmitter. Changes or modifications not expressly approved by the party responsible for compliance could void the user's authority to operate the equipment.

Selon RSS 131 Issue 2:

- Gain de bande passante nominal: 80dB max
- Bande passante nominale: 90kHz maximum pour le marché canadien
- Puissance nominale de sortie moyenne: + 37dBm maximum en DL et +24dBm maximum en UL.
- Impédances d'entrée et de sortie: 50 ohms

La puissance de sortie nominale du fabricant de cet équipement est pour le fonctionnement d'une seule porteuse. Pour les situations où plusieurs signaux de porteuse sont présents, la cote devrait être réduite de 3,5 dB, en particulier lorsque le signal de sortie est ré-irradié et peut causer des interférences aux utilisateurs de bande adjacents. Cette réduction de puissance doit se faire au moyen d'une puissance d'entrée ou d'une réduction de gain et non pas par un atténuateur à la sortie du dispositif.

Déclaration d'exposition RF pour ISED: «Cet appareil est conforme au Code de sécurité de Santé Canada. L'installateur de cet appareil doit s'assurer que les rayonnements RF ne sont pas émis au-delà de l'exigence de Santé Canada. Vous pouvez obtenir de l'information à l'adresse http://www.hc-sc.gc.ca/ewh-semt/pubs/radiation/radio_guide-lignes_direct/index-fra.php.

L'antenne utilisée pour cet émetteur doit être installée de manière à assurer une séparation d'au moins 55 cm dans DL et 55 cm dans UL de toutes les personnes et ne doit pas être collocée ni fonctionner avec une autre antenne ou émetteur. Les changements ou modifications non expressément approuvés par la partie responsable de la conformité pourraient annuler l'autorisation de l'utilisateur d'utiliser l'équipement.

Product Description.

The UHF Low Fiplex Digital DAS has a modular structure that consists in two different modules in star configuration, the Digital Master Unit model DH4L00-M (center of the star) and Digital Remote Unit model DH4L37-R (legs of the star) that can operate in the UHF frequency range of 406-424MHz. Each one of the different modules is enclosed in the same or equivalent case, therefore, product description and installing instruction sections are valid for all of them.

The Fiplex Digital Master is a RF-to-Fiber and Fiber-to-RF conversion system. These conversions are done using FPGA based Digital Signal Processing. It provides a connection to the Base Station and it centralises all the connectivity of the DAS. It also provides the possibility to connect up to six Digital Remote Units.

The Digital Remote Unit, also is a RF-to-Fiber and Fiber-to-RF conversion system. These conversions are also made using FPGA based Digital Signal Processing. It provides amplification to the RF signals needed to provide signal amplification into the target area.

The Master and Remote Units is where the RF interfaces are located, the Master Unit has the "To Base" RF Port, and the Remote Unit has the "To Mobile" RF Port.

The advantages of using digital signal transportation over fiber are to avoid the addition of the fiber analog noise when it is used to transport analog signals. Along with this, the UL squelch of the Digital Remote Unit works not only per channel but also per time slot, this makes the Fiplex Digital DAS solution unique by its outstanding management of the UL noise.

The Fiplex Digital Master Unit also provides an access point to monitor and control all the system parameters not only of the Digital Master Unit but also to each Digital Remote Unit connected on the system. This connection can be done locally via USB or Web-Browser, or remotely using Ethernet (via SNMP protocol).

The DH4-L series are NFPA Ready orderable with AC or DC option. As optional it can have remote control via Ethernet or via wireless modem.

The Digital Master Unit and the Digital Remote Units both have heavy duty IP67/NEMA4X cabinet for outdoor usage, it is designed to be wall or pole mounted, however, to mount on standard 19" rack, a special mounting kit can be supplied.

For more details refer to the product datasheet.

2.1 Digital Master Unit Ports



If the Digital Master Unit is equipped with internal duplexers, the enclosure will only have one "To Base" RF Port.

If the Digital Master is prepared for custom external duplexers, the enclosure will have two RF Ports, "DI In" and "UL Out".

2.2 Digital Remote Unit Ports



If the Digital Remote Unit is equipped with internal duplexers, the enclosure will only have one "To Mobile" RF Port.

If the Digital Remote Unit is prepared for custom external duplexers, the enclosure will have two RF Ports, "DI Out" and "UL In".

2.3 Connection Diagram



2.4 FO Connection

2.4.1 FO Connection in Master Unit



Note: Each fiber connection is performed with simplex fiber and LC-APC connector.

2.4.2 FO Connection in Remote Unit



Note: Each fiber connection is performed with simplex fiber and LC-APC connector.

2.5 Interface with signal source

The interface with a Signal Source can be done in three different ways, depending on the availability of separated UL and DL connectors.

In cases when the signal source will be picked from the air, there is no need to add a Signal Booster to feed the Digital Master. The Digital Master in its standard configuration can pick the signals from the air just by connecting a donor antenna to it.



In case when a BTS is used as a Signal Source and the coupling is made thru a Point Of Interconnection (POI). A POI, can consist on a simple attenuator, duplexer, coupler or a combination of them and it is needed to accommodate the DL level to the design requested level.



2.6 Dimensions



2.6.1 Digital Master and Remote Unit Cabinet Dimensions

3 Installation

Mounting the cabinet

Fiplex Digital Signal Booster is designed for outdoor usage with a weather proof outdoor NEMA4 cabinet that can be mounted without any kind of shelter from rain, snow or hail.

However, to improve reliability, it is recommended to mount the Digital Signal Booster on a site with shelter from direct exposure to sun, rain, snow and hailing.

It is not recommended to operate the Signal Booster under bad weather conditions, such as:

- Intense rainfall, snowfall or hail
- Storm or high wind
- Extremely low or high temperature
- High humidity of the air

Mounting

1. Mount the bracket

The Signal Booster can be mounted on a wall or pole. These mounting cases are shown below in Figure 1 and Figure 2. The bracket is provided with the Signal Booster.



Figure 1

Figure 1 shows a bracket attachment to a wall using three fixing screws.



Figure 2

Figure 2 shows a bracket attachment to a pipe using four inox hose clamps (provided with bracket).





3. Secure the cabinet to the bracket as shown in Figure 4. To attach the Signal Booster's cabinet to the bracket use the provided four M6 x 1/2" allen screws.



Figure 4

Opening and Closing the Cabinet

To open the cabinet, release the 8 door screws indicated in figure 5 using the provided special allen key.



A - Release Signal Booster cover.

Figure 5





B - Open the Signal Booster cover.

Figure 6



C – Close the Signal Booster cover.

Figure 7



D - Secure Signal Booster cover.

Figure 8

Use of Liquid Tight Conduit

The unit has available a Liquid Tight Conduit Fitting connector. The unit as standard has the connector installed, so if the user requires to use this connector, if available, the NFPA cables, Ethernet, DC and AC cables can be routed through this connector.



Figure 9; AC Routing through cable gland or conduit connector

If the is not going to use Liquid Tight Conduits, then the connector should be replaced by the provided sealing cup as indicated in Figure 10.



A - Remove the conduit connector



B - Install the sealing cup

Figure 10; Replacement of Conduit connector to sealing cup

Nema4X considerations

This device is equipped with a Nema4X enclosure, however, to ensure the Nema rating, the user must have the following considerations:

- 1. Correct use of the Liquid Tight Conduit. In case this interface is not used, it should be replaced with the sealing cup.
- 2. Sealing cups should be installed in the non-used cable glands.
- 3. The RF Ports should be perfectly mated.

4 Commissioning

4.1 Connection step by step

Connect the RF ports, Power, Fibers and Ethernet Cable Glands location, for Master and Remote units following the next steps:

- 1. For Master Unit:
 - a. Master Unit with internal duplexers
 - i. Connect the signal coupled from the base station to the "To Base" RF port. N type female connectors are used in the unit. The coupling to Base station can be done with a Donor antenna or through a POI.
 - ii. Connect fiber cables to internal optical modules. LC-APC connectors are used in the unit. Connect the remote units on the dedicated ports.
 - iii. Connect USB Cable for local management.
 - b. Master Unit with external duplexers
 - i. Connect the signal coming though the external duplexer using the "UL Out" and "DL in" RF ports. N type female connectors are used in the unit.
 - ii. Connect fiber cables to internal optical modules. LC-APC connectors are used in the unit. Connect the remote units on the dedicated ports.
 - iii. Connect USB Cable for local management.
- 2. For Remote Unit:
 - a. Remote Unit with internal duplexers
 - i. Connect service antenna ("RF To Mobile" port) coaxial cable to remote unit. N type female connectors are used in the unit.
 - ii. Connect fiber cable to internal optical module. LC-APC connector is used in the unit.
 - b. Remote Unit with external duplexers
 - i. Connect the remote unit to the externa duplexer using the "DL Out" and "UL In" RF Ports. N type female connectors are used in the unit.
 - ii. Connect fiber cable to internal optical module. LC-APC connector is used in the unit.
- 3. Once RF ports of the unit are properly loaded connect the Main Power the AC or DC source depending on the model.

If using the AC model, electrical installation must provide differential and thermo-magnetic breaker elements according to electric safety international regulations.

If using the DC model, the Main Power cable provided with the unit has tree poles:

- The Green cable is connected to the chassis.
 - The Blue cable should be connected to the most positive source tension.
 - The Brown cable should be connected to the most negative source tension.

For -48VDC supply voltage, connect the 0V(GND) reference to the Green and Blue cable, and the -48VDC to the Brown cable.

For +48VDC supply voltage, connect the 0V(GND) reference to the Green and Brown cable, and the +48VDC to the Blue cable.



4. If the Remote Unit has the NFPA Option, there is a dedicated cable gland for this purpose. A multiconductor cable can be used to connect the NFPA dry contacts to the Fire Department Control Box.

N		0	N N		NO
•	•	•	•	•	•
1	2	3	4	5	6
	VSWF	2	R	epeate Fail	er

Status of contacts (Alarms Off)

- Pin 1 2 = VSWR (normally closed contact)
- Pin 2 3 = VSWR (normally open contact)
- Pin 4-5 = Repeater Fail (normally closed contact)
- Pin 5 6 = Repeater Fail (normally open contact)

Figure 11; NFPA Dry Contact connection configuration



Figure 12; NFPA Dry Contact connection location inside the cabinet

5. Once the unit has been connected to the power source, it takes about 30 seconds to run a booting routine. After that time unit is ready to be connected via USB cable to the Digital Master to a computer running Fiplex Control Software (FCS) in order to be properly configured.



Figure 13; USB Port location inside the cabinet

4.2 Starting Operation



BE SURE THAT "TO MOBILE" AND "TO BASE" PORTS ARE PROPERLY LOADED EITHER WITH 50 OHMS DUMMY LOADS, OR RADIATING SYSTEM.

1. Turn on the repeater, connect computer to repeater through USB cable, and run Fiplex Control Software. Check that all remote units are connected to the master through fiber optic checking link status.

Fiples Control Settiers	training front concerning				100	103
Die About						
Non-Perform	Disconnect					
curiza - ingital silver by	65 Naster With Optical Port Exponence					- 2
fipleX		DIGITA	L FIBER DAS			18114/87
Continue			Master Fiples	L	.ink status	10
Continu Statu Tag Tag Tr Downlink: Spectrum Date & Time	Af (IN Source Losses Obdotons (U.S.) Presson 22.5.8 days Development Res Depend Attenuation 2.5. effi	AC OVER TO BRANE REGION (UK.) Texase 44.0 dise ACC 0.0 di Microsoftic 1.0 di DOWNLING PJ.(TREDEC	BOARD STATUS Temperature Signal Processor	0 - 45 	REPORTE LINK E REPORTE LINK 2 REPORTE LINK 3 REPORTE LINK 3 AEPORTE LINK 3	
Configuration Apple Charges Roked Settings	Bio Control Software Bio Control Software Bio Control Software Control Software	1 (0.2) (0.0) Now Are Set 1 (0.2) (0.2) (0.0) (0.0)	Exploration, LTH	RET & ARENOTE LONG 7 REMOTE LONG 9 REPORTE LONG 10 REPORTE LONG 10 REPORTE LONG 10		
the second is	- Appendix a		Reacto F[PL82]			101
int int part int part int part int part inter	MT 15 front forcested (DA) Prane (ML 2 store Contribut Galar (DL 9 - R) (ML 2 store 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	AF CALL IS A service (DL) Service (DL H - R) SE C AFF (DL H - R) SE C	NUMER AND STORE	BOARD ETATUS an 200 - 30	REPAILTS LINE 1 NEMOTE HA Frequency Spric - Probat - Probat -	ara 0

2. Enable channel filtering if needed and setup desired channel frequencies. If Fiplex Digital Fiber DAS is used as channel selective, user has to know what frequencies are used in base station. Each channel can be enabled independently. Channels not used can be showed / hidden using the "Show channels" checkboxes. If remote units are on and connected through optical fiber, the corresponding uplink frequencies will be automatically set, too.

Allout					
Constantes 11	Disconnect				
izh - trigital Filter IM	AS Naster With Optical Port Exponence				
fipleX	DIGITAL FIBER DAS		181.14		
0.53080	Baster Tiples		.0.		
Ensine Taga 19 enlink Spectrum Date & Time	Mill (IN Investigence (INL) MIL (INL) MIL (INL) MIL (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) MIL (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Present (INL) Milestanding INL INL Present (INL) Present (INL) Set number of active channels and frequencies INL Present (INL) Present (INL)		REPROTE LINK 1 - REPROTE LINK 2 - REPROTE LINK 3 - REPROTE LINK 4 -		
Configuration	DOWNLING FALTERING. Busing Of Spanlets Of Strandard Mill Aller Strandard OF				
Apole Chonger Nektod Settings	th Co. In (Boa) is (Br. Society from the Society for the Society of Society for Society for the Society of Society for the Society for the Society of Society for the Soc	NENGTE LINK NENGTE LINK			
Virsin			NEMOTE LINK 11		
100x10.0+001	- Aukira 1. Neiste TIPART				
(NER STREET	BY DA format (DA.) BY OUT to functional (DL.) Provide (DA.) BY OUT to functional (DL.) Provide (DA.) BOWER AMPLICITIES		REPORTE LINE I REPORTE MARTIN		
CipleX	APT INK PALTERING	Proguet	thatas 5 0		

3. According to DL RF input levels, program input attenuator to avoid input overflow, and output attenuator for each remote to obtain desired output level in each remote.

Allout			
scan-renteer 1	Disconnect		
25 - Engilal Filter-B	DAS Master Wills Optical Port Exponence		
fipleX		DIGITAL FIBER DAS	000
CONTRACTOR OF	Set Input attenuator	Master Tiples	
Configuration Apply Charge	Aff (19 Source Source Statistics (191.) Present 371.4 dime. (Dererflow The Stagend Addemander \$1.6 Statistics \$2.6 Statistics \$2.6 Statistics \$2.6 Statistics \$2.6 Statistics \$2.6	NO OVER to Share Martine (05.) NO AND STATUS NO Parameter NO AND STATUS NO ACC NO NO ADDAMA STATUS NO	HOTE LINK E
Viesim	3		NOTE LINK 9 + NOTE LINK 10 + NOTE LINK 11 + NOTE LINK 12 +
(We is seening)	- ADMONG D	Set Output attenuator	10
CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR	BT (16 formul acceluted (18.)) Parameter Parameter Parameter Craneflow DD DD DD DD Craneflow DD DD DD DD Craneflow DD DD DD DD	NF GUT to kernende (DL) HOWEX ARRESTUR Territorio (DL) H R) SII © HOWEX ARRESTUR Territorio (DL) H R) SII © HOWEX ARRESTUR Territorio Alternative D SII HOWEX ARRESTUR Territorio D SII HOWEX ARRESTUR Territorio Territori Territo	TTE LINE 1 REMOTE MALTER
Contract	man of marine of marines and	UPLINE HISTORING BAR	100

4. Reciprocally, set UL band gain adjusting output attenuator of master unit. It is recommended that DL gain and UL gain be equal.

Allout					
scangestors []	Disconnect				
125 - trigital Fiber DA	AS Master With Optical Port Exponence				
fipleX		DIGITA	L FIBER DAS		184
Continue	estra	Set Output attenuato	Master Fiples		1
Entropy Tags Tr Date & Time Configuration Apoly Changes National Settings	Af the face face (bit) Parse Parse	HE ONT TO Base Station (M.) There AGC 0.0 at AGC 0	BORRD STATUS Separative Sepa	Extended Line 1 👳	RENOTE LINK E = RENOTE LINK 2 = RENOTE LINK 2 = RENOTE LINK 4 = RENOTE LINK 5 = RENOTE LINK 5 = RENOTE LINK 9 = RENOTE LINK 9 = RENOTE LINK 9 =
westin	Transmission (232724		HEMOTE LOK 12 -
Con con Con con Con con Con con Con con	HT DA forma farenhad (DA) Preser Herenhad (DA) Control (DA) Alexa Pro- Control (DA) M == R] HE 40 CO	NF GUT to terminal (DL) see 14.7 also are (DL H -> N) NF 40 Also	HOWER AND STUDE	utus . 14 <	REPORTE LINE 1
CipleX	Check UL and DL gain	n for each remote	ning (1997)	Frager	Hang Sync U Shuhan U U Ra Dutant U U

 Set up squelch settings. Controls are independent in UL (for each remote) and DL (master) bands. Typical values for UL are between -110dBm and -100dBm for squelch threshold. For DL, recommended value for squelch threshold is minimum level received in any active channel minus 10dB.

Fights Control Settiers	NAME AND ADDRESS OF				_	HERITORI
Scandfollow []	Disconnect					
riza - ingital silver ite	As Naster With Optical Port Exponsion					
fipleX		DIGITA	L FIBER DAS			18114
1000			Master Fiples			
Salarin Tapa 19 Osta B. Tima Data B. Tima	Af (H fines face Option (D1) Press Devolution 21.6 day Devolution Re David Attenuation 5 db	M OVT Is Base Ratios (M.) Team disc disc disc AGC 0.0 dl Microsofter 0.0 dl	BOAKD STATUS Temperature Signal Processor	12 45		REPOTE LINK E
Configuration Apple Chonget Related Settings	DL squeich setting Statistic Transition Statistic Statis <td< td=""><td>Ings DOWNLING PRITERING All Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) All All Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) All Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) All Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) All Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017)</td><td>1 (10) (10) (10) 1 (10) (10) (10) (10) 1 (10) (10) (10) (10) (10) (10) (10) (10</td><td></td><td>Experiences line 1 👳</td><td>REPORTE LINK 0 - REPORTE LINK 0 - REPORTE LINK 0 - REPORTE LINK 0 - REPORTE LINK 0 -</td></td<>	Ings DOWNLING PRITERING All Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) All All Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) All Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) All Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) All Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017) Second Annual (Str. 2017)	1 (10) (10) (10) 1 (10) (10) (10) (10) 1 (10) (10) (10) (10) (10) (10) (10) (10		Experiences line 1 👳	REPORTE LINK 0 - REPORTE LINK 0 - REPORTE LINK 0 - REPORTE LINK 0 - REPORTE LINK 0 -
Wieslan	-		Bur			NEMOTE LOW 12 -
The Lords	- Automa a .		Bessite FIPSET			
P TableX	HT Dis freese forvested (DA) Nearest Charlen we Charlen we Cha	NF 017 to territorial (DL) New 14.4 New (DL: H -= N) New (DL: H -= N) New (DL: H -= N) No.6 No.7 No.7 No.7	HOWER AND STOR	BOARD ETATVO	JH =	REPORTE LENSE 1 REPORTE HARREN
a construction of the second se	Statis v Taulek V, Stradald -300	APLINK FILTER	une.		. Ge	In Datast C C C

6. Setup desired filter bandwidth, depending on presence of adjacent channels. In principle, recommended bandwidth filter is 90KHz due to its low delay, but if adjacent signal is detected, narrow filters can be used. Fine gain can be set to equalize input signals.



4.3 Status Indicators

There is an indicator panel located at the front panel of the repeater. This led panel works as a status monitor, in order indicate warning or alarms of repeater

There are four leds, first one the power ON indication led, labelled "PWR".

A Second led, labelled "STS" summarizes warnings regarding critical operational conditions of the repeater.

Third and fourth led summarizes operational conditions for uplink "UL" and downlink "DL" chains. In general, leds has four states: off, slow blinking, fast blinking, on. Table 1 describes alarm and warning conditions for each led state in the master device and Table 2 is for remote devices.



Indicator Panel	LED indication description
PWR	Unit is not powered or fail in power supply
PWR	Normal state: Unit is powered on
STS	Normal state
	HW fail: digital signal processor is not detected
•	Temperature: very high internal unit temperature
STS	Optical fiber alarm in at least one link
STS	TBS Warning: No signal is detected coming from base station
UL	Normal state
DL	RF input overflow: maximum level at RF input is exceeded
DL	Normal state
Where:	
	Led OFF
	Led slow blinking with period of 2 seconds aprox. WARNING
	Led fast blinking with period of 0.5 seconds aprox. ALARM
	Led ON

Table 1

	Table 2
Indicator Panel	LED indication description
Pwr	Unit is not powered or fail in power supply
PWR	Normal state: Unit is powered on
STS	Normal state
STS	HW fail: digital signal processor is not detected Temperature: very high internal Unit temperature Optical fiber alarm in at least one link
UL	Normal state
DL	PA Overflow or excessive temperature alarm.
DL	PA Underflow: PA output level is lower than +25dBm
DL	Normal state
Where:	
	Led OFF
	Led slow blinking with period of 2 seconds aprox. WARNING
	Led fast blinking with period of 0.5 seconds aprox. ALARM
	Led ON

4.4 Laboratory Measurements

For specific parameters verification and laboratory tests, please contact factory. Detailed procedures, recommended tests set up, and a knowledge engineering team will bring adequate support to perform this measurements in a comfortable and safely way.

Part 2 SOFTWARE

5 Introduction

Fiplex Fiber DAS can be fully configured and monitored through USB connection. Digital Master unit receives through optical links monitoring and configuration data from remotes units. For this reason, whole system can be fully configured and supervised from digital master unit.

6 USB Software

6.1 Software description (Digital Master)

If software has been successfully installed and connected to Digital Master (see section 7) status screen will appear. In this screen, RF configurations parameters (channel frequencies, bandwidth filter, gains / attenuation) and RF and optical links monitoring (RF input/output levels, AGC status, optical link status) are shown.



At left side of webpage, configuration menus are shown:

- Content
 - Status: whole RF configuration and monitoring parameters are shown. These parameters are described in next section.
 - Tag: user can set a tag to ease repeater identification. For modifying the TAG, write a new value in text field and click over Apply Changes link

fliplex			
Content	TAGS		
fitatus Taga	MASTER	Master FIFLER	
10 A	EXPANSOR 1	Expansor FIPLEX1	_
Townlink Spectrum	REMOTE 2	Remote FIPLEX3	_
tale & Time	AEMOTE 0	Samote FIPLER6	_
	designed as	Remote PTPLET11	-

 IP: At this page (for units with Ethernet supervision), IP addresses configuration and addresses of SNMP Managers are shown. User can set addresses of two SNMP Managers (IP where SNMP agent will send TRAP information). To modify, click over Apply Changes link after writing new values on text fields. Also router 3G IP address can be viewed in this screen (if 3G router option is installed)

Tiplex						
Content Status Tarr	IP SETTING	s				
	10	192	i.	168	1	10
	1P NET MASK	192 255		348 255	1	10 0
	1P NET RASK GATEWAY	193 255 193	a contraction of	248 235 268	1	10 0
Cate & Time	1P NET MASK GATEWAY SHIPP Parager 1	193 255 193 193	A DESCRIPTION OF	168 235 168 168	1	10 0 2 15

• Downlink Spectrum: in order to know input signal: level of desired channels, unwanted channel levels, Digital Master provides an spectrum analyzer that shows input signal in frequency domain.



• Date & Time (for units with Ethernet supervision): page to modify real time clock. When the repeater is not powered, this clock runs with a voltage supply provided by a 3V lithium battery, button type of 20mm (CR2032) with 220mA·h. This suffices for at least half year. When the repeater is powered, no current is drained from the battery. So, actual battery life will depend on repeater usage. For battery replacement, please locate battery holder between USB and Ethernet connectors on main board. Battery positive side is UP, i.e. on holder clip.

FipleX	
Control SUP	ERVISION SYSTEM TIME
Tage SP Cierry Hon,	ent Time: 10 Nov 2014 18:25:56
Configuration	
Return Setting	n (2014)
MONT	IN 11
DAT	r [10
HOU	. 18
MONUT	765 Z.0
and the second se	

After clicking on "Apply Changes" link, next message will appear, warning the user that system needs to be rebooted.

IFOK re	load Inia	page all	ir a while.	
		1944	C	

- Configuration
 - Apply Changes: as it is said above, this link is used to load changes to the repeater, in configuration, tag, IP, password and date and time menus. After any configuration change, web page will show and icon that allows user to know if configuration has been successfully applied:



- o Reload Settings: clicking this link, repeater configuration data is refreshed.
- Version: shows hardware, firmware and software versions of repeater and serial number.
- 6.2 RF parameters description (Digital Master)

"Status" menu shows whole RF configuration and RF and optical links monitoring data that are distributed along the webpage.

The first frame called "MASTER" is placed in top of webpage, showing configuration of digital master unit. Below this, some frames titled "REMOTE 1", "REMOTE 2"... There is one for each remote unit connected to the master, and configuration and status information related to each remote can be viewed. Next figures show these frames:

HASTER.		Master FIFLEX		1
RF IN from Ress Station (Dk) Power 95.3 dbm Overflow Re Signal • Attenuator I dil	RF OUT to Base Station (UL) Power 40.5 dBm AGC 0.0 db Attenuator 5 d8	BOARD STATUS Temperature 30 °C Signal Processor		SENATE LINK 3
Enable 🗹 Squelch 🗹 Threshold 🗌 🚮	DOWNLENK FILTERING		EXPANSOR LINK 1	REMOTE LINK 0 .
Oh. Om FH. (MHz) G (28) BH/ (KHz) H 1 ✓ 177,500000 0 32 ∨ III 3 ✓ 178,500000 0 90 ∨ IIII	-116.6 2 2 7 176.50000	G (d8) Ber (XX4) Power d8m Det		

• Digital Master frame. There are five sub-sections inside this frame:

	DOWNELINK FILTERING									
Sealin (2) Seadin (1)) Trends	nd) -45 aller	Bress all	arraite 🖌	**	10000	100	1C	
Ch. On	Try (Male)	0.0m) #	er (1912) · Prever	. dire	Der.Ch. C	n Philippes)	10 bitt the (1992)	Sener:	-	Det
1.1	177.500300	6 1	10 v	1-136.0	2.5	✓ 1 ±76,500000	8-290 H	-	138.4	
1 1	175.503500	5 5 1	10 v	1-117.5						

 Downlink filtering: this section contains fields to modify channel frequencies, squelch options and filtering options. Parameters are described in following table:

Parameter	Range	Description
Frequency	Downlink band	Downlink frequency channels. Frequency resolution is 3.125KHz
Channel enable	Enabled / disabled	Each of 12 channels can be enabled/disabled
Bw Filter	90KHz / 45KHz / 30KHz	Bandwidth of channels filter can be independently adjusted (if filtering is enabled)
Fine Gain Adjust	-5 to +5dB	If filtering is enabled, gain of each channel can be fine adjusted
Power indicator		Level of each channel, measured according to its bandwidth filter, is shown in dBm units. Led indicator shows if levels exceeds squelch threshold (green) or not (yellow).
Squelch enable control	Enabled / disabled	Enabling this control, repeater does not transmit in each channel if RF input power do not exceed the threshold level configured according to next row
Squelch threshold control	-90dBm to 40dBm	If squelch is enabled, input levels below this threshold are not transmitted.
Filtering enable	Enabled / disabled	Filtering option can be bypassed. If filtering is disabled, fine gain adjustments and squelch options are ignored



o Master RF Input parameters. Next table describes information of this frame:

Parameter	Range	Description
Broad band level		This indicator shows input level measured along DL band
Overflow	Grey: normal state / Red: alarm state	This indicator shows overflow on input circuitry is occurring. This condition can be avoided increasing input attenuator



o Master RF Output parameters. Next table describes information of this frame:

Parameter	Range	Description
UL Output power		This indicator shows output level in UL band
AGC	Grey: normal state / Red: alarm state	This indicator shows gain reduction that master unit is applying at RF output to prevent PA UL overload
Output Attenuator RF OUT to Base Station (UL)	0dB to 30dB	Output attenuator to adjust UL gain. System UL gain can be computed as: G_UL (dB) = 80 – AttOUTmaster(dB)



 Master Board status: general parameters of master unit are contained in this frame

Parameter	Range	Description
Temperature		This indicator shows unit temperature
High temperature	Grey: normal state /	High temperature alarm condition is indicated
alarm	Red: alarm state	with this led.
Signal processor	Grey: normal state /	Alarm indicates that digital signal processor is
alarm	Red: alarm state	not working properly.
RESET control		With this control, unit can be restarted

						RE	HOTE LINK 3			
				Samuta	Manhor			Samuta	Haster	
				1 N		Sync to Haster	Errors	5 B	9,3	
	REMOTE LINK 3	1			14-	Ts/Re status	Supply Voltage	3.3	3,3	76
(PANSOR LINK 1 🐱	REMOTE LINK 6	4	\rightarrow			Data Leck	Bias Current	29.4	32.9	m4
	REMOTE LINK 11	4	-			Data Sync Module status	Temperature	27.2	36.9	10
				1 2	100	Outwal Ta From	Ta: Power	8.18	-8.2	dim
				- G	4	Optical Re Error	Rs Power Master	-	-15.9	dem
							Ry Power Remain	-	-8101	diam'

 Optical link status: each indicator shows optical link status between digital master and each remote unit. Clicking on "REMOTE LINK n" detailed monitoring data of each optical link can be viewed: voltage, current and temperature of each optical module, transmitted and received optical power, and alarms related to digital data recovery system.

REMOTE 2	Remote FIFLEX3					
RF IN from terminal (UE) Power -90.0 dim Overflow - Gain (UE: M == R) 80 dil	RF OUT to terminal (DL) Power 53.0 dim Overflew Gain (DL: H → R) 50 di AGC 0.0 di	FOWER AMPLIFIER Enabled C RF ON Attanuator 0 d2	BOARD STATUS Tesuperstare 36 *C Signel Processor	REMOTE LINK 1 REMOTE MASTER Frequency Sync.		
Enable 🖌 Squeich 🗸 Threshold -	-100 dilm -100 dilm (z) Power dilm Del ADC dil	K FELTERING Ch. On Fr. (Mits) 0 (d8) 8	w (VHz) Power dBm Det ABC. dB	Status Riz Datact Error Count 1 0 Riz Power (dtm) 4.0 -15.9		
1 √ 185.509000 0 90.√ 3 √ 186.509000 0 90.√	-117.5	.0 2 √ 1 124.50000 0 .0	30			

• Remote frame: shows configuration and monitoring information of each remote unit. The frame is divided in the following sections:

	UPLINK FILTERENG
Brable of Departs of Termshold 100 albes	
(5. 26 Pt. (593) (1)(40) Rev (594) Process	other that Add will be to (Mail 10 (Mil) Ber (Mail 10 (Mil) Ber (Mail 10 Add 10
1 V 1 100.00000 1 1 10 V 10000	117.5

 Uplink filtering: this section shows equivalent parameters of downlink filtering of master unit.

Parameter	Range	Description
Frequency	UL band	Uplink frequency channels. These frequencies are derived automatically from downlink frequencies, taking into account frequency separation between DL and UL bands
Channel enable	Enabled / disabled	Each of 12 channels can be enabled/disabled
Bw Filter	90KHz / 45KHz / 30KHz	Bandwidth of channels filter can be independently adjusted (if filtering is enabled)
Fine Gain Adjust	-5 to +5dB	If filtering is enabled, gain of each channel can be fine adjusted
Power indicator		Level of each channel, measured according to its bandwidth filter, is shown in dBm units. Led indicator shows if levels exceeds squelch threshold (green) or not (yellow).
AGC		Show gain reduction to prevent overloading in AGC per channel
Squelch enable control	Enabled / disabled	Enabling this control, repeater does not transmit in each channel if RF input power do not exceed the threshold level configured according to next row
Squelch threshold control	-110dBm to -70dBm	If squelch is enabled, input levels below this threshold are not transmitted.
Filtering enable	Enabled / disabled	Filtering option can be bypassed. If filtering is disabled, fine gain adjustments and squelch options are ignored

	Territoria and and and and and and and and and an	25.0
Power man	90.0	480
Overflow		
Gain (UL: M - R)	30	ėñ.

• Remote RF Input parameters. Next table describes information of this frame:

Parameter	Range	Description
Broad band level		This indicator shows input level measured in UL band
Overflow	Grey: normal state / Red: alarm state	This indicator shows overflow on input circuitry is occurring.
Uplink gain from remote to master	ain from to master	



• Remote RF Output parameters. Next table describes information of this frame:

Parameter	Range	Description
Output power level		This indicator shows the PA output power
PA Overflow	Grey: normal state / Red: alarm state	Indicates that PA is overloaded. Condition is output power higher than +43dBm
Downlink gain from master to remote		Shows downlink gain for each remote. Can be calculated as: G_DL (dB) = 80 – AttInMaster(dB) – AttOutRemote(dB)
AGC		Shows gainr reduction applied in DL band signal to prevent PA overload



RF on/off control and Board Status:

Parameter	Range	Description
RF on/off Indicator	Green: RF Enabled / Red: RF Disabled	This indicator shows PA status. Power amplifier can be automatically disabled if other alarm conditions occurs: a) Fail in optical link b) PA Overflow
RF Enable Control	On / Off	With this control RF DL and UL chains can be disabled
Output attenuator	0 to 40dB	This control sets the output attenuation used to set DL gain together with Master Input Attenuator
Temperature		This indicator shows unit temperature
High temperature alarm	Grey: normal state / Red: alarm state	High temperature alarm condition is indicated with this led.
RESET control		With this control, unit can be restarted



 Optical link status: shows optical link status between master and each remote unit. Moreover, clicking on "REMOTE LINK n" detailed monitoring data of each optical link can be viewed: voltage, current and temperature of each optical module, transmitted and received optical power, and alarms related to digital data recovery system. The main window shows only general parameters:

Parameter	Range	Description
Frequency Sync	Green: Normal state / Red: Alarm state	This indicator shows frequency synchronization status between master and remote unit
Status	Green: Normal state Yellow: Warning state Red: Alarm state	This indicator summarizes the status of optical module based in voltage, current, temperature and optical transmitted power
Rx Detect	Green: Normal state Yellow: Warning state Red: Alarm state	This indicator summarizes the status of optical reception based in received optical power and digital data recovery system
Error Count		Counter that it is incremented when optical link fails.
Rx Power		Shows optical received power. For reliable optical link, RX power must be higher than -25dBm

6.3 Software description (Remote Unit)

While software connected to digital master allows configuration and monitoring of whole system, if software is connected to remote unit, only parameters of this unit can be viewed / modified.

Then, status screen of remote unit only shows information regarding this unit:

Charles Print Day		
TipleX	DIGITAL FIBER DAS	
Content	ADMOTE BARNIE FIPLERT	
allignmettions gly Changes and Settings	UPLINE FILTERING Dealer V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V	
Mersion (No. 3.10-01.7 (Dev. 3.20.1)		
CARDIN LINE		
Fliplex		

Distribution and meaning of the controls contained in status page are very similar to single remote frame of master status page, only optical frame is different due to only remote side of optical link is monitored.

- 7 Local Software. Installation and troubleshooting
- 7.1 Installation

The following section will describe the steps to be followed in order to install and use the Fiplex Control software with your Fiplex repeater.

1. Before connect USB cable between computer and repeater, run the FiplexControlSoftware.msi File. Next screen will appear...

FiplexControlSoftware	The second day in the second day is	lester a
Welcome to the Fiples Setup Wizard	ControlSoftware	fipleX
The initialer will guide you forough computer.	the steps required to install Fiple	ControBoltware on your
Click "Next" to continue		
WIENING The computer groups	a a polected by caputalit law or	of international totalies
Unauthorized duplication or defile civil or circinal penalties, and will be	Jon of this program, or any portion is provided to the maximum extra	en of it, may recult in service tent possible under the law

Choose the default installation path "C:\Program Files (x86)\FiplexControlSoftware". Note that this
can change according to your system configuration (32bits or 64bits), language and Windows
Version.

Service and the service of the servi	and the second second	Inclusion and
Select Installation Fol	lder	fiplex
The installer will install FiplesContro	ofSoftware in the following tolder.	
To mital in this folder, click "filesif balow or click "Browce".	To initial to a different new or e	sating tobel, enter one
Eolder: C. Phogram Files In	051FiplexControlSattware1	Browse.
You can install the software on the	r lollowing diges	
Volume		Dick *
		21-49 -
1 I.	H	
		Disk Coat
	Garcel Br	Next
FiplexCantrolSoftware	and all states	
FiglesControlSoftware Confirm Installation	and the second	fipleX
FollowControlSoftware	-ControlEcolinase on your compa	fipleX
FiplesControlSoftware Confirm Installation The involte is ready to instal Fiple Click "Neet" to stat the visitables	«Contraßfollmate on your compu	fipleX
FiglesControlSoftware Confirm Installation The initiate is ready to initial Figle Click "New" to star the variables	«ContolEoffmare on your compare	fiplex *
Figles/CambolSoffware Confirm Installation The installer is ready to install Figle Click "New" to start the variables	eConstillationes on your comput	fiplex *
Figles/CambolSoftware Confirm Installation The installer is ready to install Figle Click "New" to start the viscolokon	aConscillabilises on your company	fipleX *
Figles/CambolSoffware Confirm Installation The installer is ready to initial Figle Click "Neaf" to start the initialities	aConscillationase on your compan	fipleX *
Figles/CambolSoffware Confirm Installation The Installer is ready to initial Figle Click "New" to stat the initialities	wConnolSoftware on your comput	fipleX *
Figles/CartbolSoftware Confirm Installation The Instale: Is ready to instal Figle Click "Neaf" to stat the Histologo	wConnectSoftware on your compan	*
FiplesControlSoftware Confirm Installation The installer is ready to install Fiple Click "Neal" to start the installation	wConnotSoftware on your company	*

3. The installer will start to copy the necessary files.

# FiplexControlSoftware	
Installing FiplexControlSoftware	fipleX
FplesControSoftware is being installed.	
Copying new files	
Carcel	Breine Net

4. After installation has completed, a shortcut in user desktop will appear.

I Hprexcosodoisomware	
installation Complete	fipleX
PplexControSoftware has been successfully installe	d.
Olok "Dove" to ext.	
Sec.	d Breine Close

 Connect USB cable between computer and repeater, keeping the repeater powered off. Usually, drivers will be automatically installed, but depending on Windows version, screen asking for drivers of new device can appear. Drivers can be found in application folder: C:\Program Files (x86)\FiplexControlSoftware\drivers".

	que sonware de controlado	r en el equipa	
6un	er el software de controlador en esta	ubicación:	
	regram Files (1867) Epileo Camtrol Soft	wanturitae	Egaminar
-	Elegir en una lista de contr	roladores de dispositivo ontrolador instalado compatib	en el equipo le con el dispositivo y todo e
	Eard leave unicorregion and an antimatic risk for		

6. Turn on the Repeater



BE SURE THAT "TO MOBILE" AND "TO BASE" PORTS ARE PROPERLY LOADED EITHER WITH 50 OHMS DUMMY LOADS, OR RADIATING SYSTEM.

7. Execute the Fiplex Control Software. Next window will appear:



User interface has the following controls:

- Scan Devices Button: refresh the available COM ports and identify Fiplex devices
- Connection Button: connect / disconnect software from repeater
- List of available devices: below two buttons, is placed a dropdown list that shows all available COM ports. Available COM ports not related to Fiplex devices will be shown with its number and "Unknown device" label. COM ports related to Fiplex devices will show a device description.
- Embedded Web browser: graphical area where configuration and monitoring parameters will be shown.
- File menu: contains menus to save repeater configuration to a file and load configuration from file to repeater.

NOTE: if Fiplex Repeater is not turned on, related COM port will appear as "Unknown device"

8. Click "Scan Devices"



Now, the Fiplex unit is shown in the list of available devices, and connection button is enabled.

NOTE: Fiplex repeater could not appear in list, if COM port number is higher than COM16, depending on Windows version. COM port number can be forced to arbitrary number (below COM16) through Device Administrator. In order to change COM number, click "Properties" pop-up menu:



Click "Advanced Options"

Gerand	Configuración de puerto	Central	adar Detailes	
	Bacers	girtz.	9600	
	Brs d	e datase.	8	
		Sector 1	Neguna	
	ijes de	pende	1	
	Queed	ie hav	Negure	
	Options eventede	1	aataane salone p	oldarii ado

Change COM port number

Hümers de Puerta COR COH17		- 13	3	Aceptar
Tamaños de transferencia USB				Canoniar
Selectioner valuees rule basis para con	india tuoppina	as de deum	njerio o pocas Beudine.	Datatarana
Selectore valents min after para item	mpaths role	veine.		
Antopolity (Bytes):	4006			
Transmisilin (Bytes):	4010			
Optiones \$PI			Opcenna Varias	
Selectione values más liviço para con responsta.	nge andren	es de	Brumerador Genal Instrumento Secial	
Temporizador de Latensie (neeg)	H.		Cancellar to se aponga	- 19
			Events al la remunie por apprese	
Livite de Tierpo			RTS alto al terrar	1.5
Levin de Temps de Lechara Minnes Anaesti	0	+	Evaluation Control del madein al ro- finalité Selective Suspend	9
			NEW YORK DOLLARS AND A STORE OF	

9. Click "Connect". Fiplex Control Software window will be automatically maximized, and it will show the configuration screen described in previous sections.

	Disconnect				
6 - Digital Fiber D	As master with Optical Port Espann	DICITA			
Pupiex		DIGITA	L FIBER DAS		16-2
Context	Heatraph, ;		Master FIFLEX		
Sofue Tage IP NIN Spectrum Date & Time	NF DR From Eases Statting (DL) Presser 092 and Overflow No Signal Attenuater 2 at	NF OUT to Rese Statistics (NK) Passer Add: 0.0 46 Attenuator 1 40	BOARD STATUS Temperature 30 °C Regnal Processor		REPROTE LINE 3
	Deally of South of Treatons	DOWNLINK FILTERING		EXPANSOR LIN	C1 - REMOTE LINK 6 - REMOTE LINK 1 -
Settigenetion Apply Changes aloud Settings	Sh. Sh. Fe. [1944] St. [200] St. [200]	Point Him Dat (3, 1)= Fs. (2014) -116.6 ≤ 2 27 276 500000 +117.4	1 (40) Ro (10) Years Alle (14)		
	RENOTE ±		Reports FIFLERD		
	ET IN from tarrenal (OL)	AP DOT to formation (DL) Preserver S2.0. dbm Engl	PERMER AMPLIFER BOAN	- 30 *	REMARK CAN A
Version	Overflow Gale (UL) H + K) DD dR	Case (DL: H R) 10 45 Afte ADC	master a m		REPOTE MASTER
Version [No: 1.2) [N: 1.2] [N: 1.2] [N: 1.2] [N: 1.2] [N: 1.2] [N: 1.2]	Oreeffore Gale (UL: PI → K) BD dB Reality & Readily & Threaders	Gain (INC H → R) 30 45 Afte AGC	1995		REPORTE LIBRA 2 REPORTE MARTER Programmer Symi Babes & W Ba Detect & W Immer Count 1 0 Programmer (day) 400

10. Once system is configured, user can disconnect software using connection button, now labelled "Disconnect". Initial window will be shown.

If repeater is disconnected or turned off, while Fiplex Control Software is connected to device, software will go back to initial window. Moreover, if some communication problem occurs while device is monitored, the software will go back to initial state as well.

11. Remote unit can be controlled through USB port. In this case, Fiplex Control Software will show that connected device is a remote unit.

Scan devices Connect M27 - Digital Fiber DAS Remote 12 Channels	
	fipleX®
Fiplex Control Software Version 1.0.2.0	

After click on "Connect" button, program will show only remote configuration and monitoring parameters, with same graphical interface described in previous sections:

